


ager of the Dow U.S.A. Styrene Plas-
tics Department in 1972. He became a
corporate product director in 1976.

Moves to Washington, D.C.

Formerly vice president, Finance
and North American Operations,
Motors Trading Corp., a subsidiary of
the General Motors Corp., Detroit,
Mich., PHILIP W. ROWBERG JR.'70
has become vice president, Counter-
trade, Sears World Trade Inc.,
Washington, D.C. The company is a
division of Sears, Roebuck and Co. At
Sears World Trade, Rowberg is
responsible for all of the firm’s coun-
tertrade and offset obligations. He
previously held positions with the
General Motors Corp. in New York,
N.Y., and Detroit.

Heads Siebe-Norton Co.

Making a career out of protecting
and helping workers in all types of
hazardous activities is JOHN W,
PROHASKA’51. He is president, Siebe-
Norton Co., Charleston, S.C., a new
organization formed from the sale of
the Norton Co.’s Safety Products
Division to Siebe Gorman Holdings,
an English manufacturer of indus-
trial safety products. The company
markets sophisticated protective
gloves, helmets, sound proofing
devices, lotions, breathing gear and
some of the most advanced types of
eye shields ever introduced. Prohaska
joined the Charleston Rubber Co. in
1953 and moved to the Norton Co.
when it absorbed Charleston Rubber
22 years later. Siebe-Norton has the
company headquarters and plant and
its second plant in Charleston and
other plants in North Carolina,
Rhode Island, Massachusetts, lllinois
and California, plus international
plants in Canada and Hiaiti.

Alumni Head Chi Corp.

Chi Corp., Cleveland, Ohio, the
leading manufacturer of compatible
communications products for Sperry
UNIVAC Computer Systems, has been
acquired from Ecotran Corp., Beach-
wood, Ohio, by WILLIAM E. PRITTS
1’61, newly appointed Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of Chi, and
Dr. MARVIN S. SCHWARTZ’68, Presi-
dent and Chief Operating Officer.

Pritts was most recently a Director
and Group Vice President of Erico

Products, Inc., Solon, Ohio, respon-
sible for the coordination of U.S.,
Canadian and Far East Operations.
Prior to this he was the partner
responsible for management consult-
ing services with Ernst & Whinney’s
Cleveland Office. Pritts was president
of the Case Alumni Association in
1981-82 and is a representative of the
organization to the Board of Over-

-

seers of Case Western Reserve Uni-
versity. He is also a member of the
Advisory Board of Case Institute and
is a past president of the Case Club of
Cleveland.

Schwartz, who has been with Chi
since its founding in 1968, developed
many Sperry UNIVAC-based, high per-
formance data base and data commu-
nications systems world-wide. CJ

Council Honors Volunteer

ATIONAL recognition for his many services to Case Western

Reserve University, Case Institute of Technology and the Case
Alumni Association was accorded Dr. Elmer L. Lindseth’25 by the
Council for Advancement and Support of Education at ceremo-
nies in October in Washington, D.C. The Council is a nonprofit
organization for the advancement of education and it annually
bestows national awards for excellence in its field. Lindseth was
one of 10 people nationwide to be honored.

Lindseth began his devoted service to his alma mater in 1928
when he became a member of the Case Alumni Council,
governing board of the Case Alumni Association. He also was a
columnist for the Case Alumnus magazine, writing “Adiabatic.”
He was president of the Case Alumni Association in 1940-41 and
was elected an Association-designated member of the Case
Board of Trustees in 1942. He became a Trustee-elected member
in 1949. Lindseth was named chairman of the Case Board of
Trustees and elected a life member in 1964. He continued as
chairman to 1967, the year of Federation of Case Tech and West-
ern Reserve University. Then he became a member of the Uni-
versity’s Board of Trustees and is now an honorary member.

Lindseth was presented with the Case Alumni Association’s
Meritorious Service Award in 1937 and 50 Years Service Plaque in
1978. He made a gift to Case Tech in 1945 to establish the Fred
Hale Vose Prize in honor of one of his most respected teachers.
An office in the William E. Wickenden Building is named for
Lindseth’s father, Andrew.

Case Institute conferred an honorary doctor of engineering
degree upon Lindseth in 1946; Miami University of Ohio gave
him an honorary doctor of science degree in 1951 and Cleveland
State University presented him with an honorary doctor of engi-
neering degree in 1952. The Freedoms Foundation Honor Medal
was given to Lindseth in 1960.

In 1965-68, Lindseth was chairman of Case Tech’s $17,000,000
Capital Campaign that exceeded its goal in less than three years.
At the Tenth Anniversary Celebration of the Federation of Case
Institute and Western Reserve University, he was presented with
CWRU’s University Medal, its highest honor. More recently
(1976-81), Lindseth was a member of the Major Gifts Division of
the CWRU $215,000,000 Resources Program.

In honor of Lindseth’s 80th birthday a million dollars was
raised in 72 days to endow a professorship in his name in the
Department of Biomedical Engineering at Case Institute of
Technology. First public announcement and notification to Lind-
seth of the endowed chair was made at a surprise reception in
his honor Feb. 12, 1982 in the lobby of Frederick C. Crawford
Hall. O










guage. | clearly remember handing
the listing to William C. Lynch’59 and
Donald E. Knuth’60 saying something
to the effect that Haynam, Conway,
Petznick and | were going to be out
of town for a week (to see Hopper at
UNIVAC) and would they kindly
draw a flow chart for the compiler!
They not only drew the flow chart,
but they also found several errors
and insisted that they could produce
a better compiler — all of this in one
week! They proceeded to create the
first in a series of compilers. The
generic name for all of them was
“RUNCIBLE”. The name came about
as a result of my two sons asking me
what a “runcible-spoon” was. | didn’t
know and neither did anybody in the
Computing Center so the word
became something of a curiosity!

We sent over 300 decks of cards for
RUNCIBLE to various universities,
laboratories and IBM offices all over
the world.

When Knuth wrote volume 1 of
“The Art of Computer Programming”
(1968), he dedicated it to the IBM 650
Computer at Case Institute of
Technology.

The IBM 650 was substantially up-
graded to increase its utility but the
demands of the Case community
grew even faster and it was replaced
in 1960 by a Burroughs 220. Since we
had so much success with maintain-
ing our UNIVAC |, we decided to
play the same game with the Bur-
roughs 220. Naturally (at least it then
seemed natural), we soon saw that
some very worthwhile improvements
could be made in the B-220 hard-
ware, one of which doubled the
speed of the machine at a parts cost
of $20. The B-220 arrived without any
symbolic assembler, so Conway and
Gilbert P. Steil’62 created the SAVE
assembler for it. This one introduced

*the notion of a “program point” and

contained the first implementation of
a co-routine. Conway and Steil also
got the first two passes of a COBOL
compiler running but dropped the
project when Burroughs decided to
give the project to Stanford University,
Stanford, Calif. | believe it was in the
development of the COBOL com-
piler that Conway invented the idea
of a “transition diagram”. The transi-
tion diagram and the co-routine are
now standard ideas used in computer
science. As | remember it, the co-
routine came about because of a
major difference of opinion between
Conway and Steil — neither liked the

way that the other did programming.
The former took a straight forward
approach using no “tricks” while Steil
would never write a second line of
code if he could modify an existing
one to do the job. Since neither
wanted to read the other’s code, and
each had to call the other’s part of
the program, the co-routine came
about. (Steil also distinguished him-
self by his habit of separating card
decks with chocolate covered gra-
ham crackers.)

It was on the B-220 that Knuth
created two tic-tac-toe programs — a
“smart” one and a “dumb” one. He
let them play each other for a while
and the “dumb” one soon “learned”
how to play the game effectively.
Knuth was also the manager of the
Case Tech basketball team and in-
vented a computerized method of
ranking the players. Coach Philip K.
(Nip) Heim used Knuth’s data to
revise the lineup and the team began

UNIVAC | used magnetic
tapes that were made

of phosphor bronze with
an alnico plating for

the recording surfaces.

winning some games. (After Knuth
graduated, | remember Heim’s suc-
cessor, Coach William C. Sudek,
coming in and asking where the pro-
gram was and how to use it. Sad to
say, but nobody knew.)

By 1962, we were once again out of
computing capacity, C&O was not
using the UNIVAC 1, and it was once
again time for a change. The UNIVAC
1 was actually ripped apart by the
Western Salvage Co., Cleveland,
Ohio. We had tried to interest the
Smithsonian Institution, Washington,
D.C., and the Museum of Science
and Industry, Chicago, Ill., in it, but
they already had similar exhibits and
would not take it.

We purchased a UNIVAC 1107 and
installed it in the floor space in the
Quail Building vacated by the UNI-
VAC I. The 1107 was the first machine
we had that ran so fast that a paper-
tape log of use was out of the ques-

tion. It was delivered with essentially
no software at all. Haynam and Gilbert
Hanson wrote an algebraic compiler
for it that was compatible with the
one running on the B-220. The com-
piler ran on the day that the 1107
passed its acceptance test. We
obtained a copy of the Computer
Sciences Corp.’s “EXEC II” Operating
System and hired Joseph P. Speroni’60
to maintain and modify it. This proj-
ect caused him a lot of sleepless
nights since there were quite a few
bugs and it was necessary to make
some substantial enhancements for
our type of use.

Later, Alan K. Olson’64 wrote
“EXEC 1I”” for his master’s thesis proj-
ect. (Let me hasten to say that this is
hardly a typical thing to do for a mas-
ter’s degree since it represented sev-
eral man-years of effort.)

Not content with leaving well
enough alone (as usual) we decided
to go ahead with writing a compiler
for ALGOL-60, an international stan-
dard language for communicating
algorithms. This language was very
popular in Europe but never seemed
to catch on in the U.S. despite the
fact that it was vastly superior to any-
thing else. Haynam was in charge of
the project and was helped by a large
number of undergraduate students.
ALGOL became the principal lan-
guage used at Case, being used for
quite a few years and on two
computers.

Some of the researchers at Case
Tech had contracts that specified
FORTRAN as the language to be used.
A lot of them actually did all of the
work in ALGOL then converted to
FORTRAN at the end of the project.
The reason: ALGOL was designed to
be “user friendly” with readable
error messages, subscript checking
and other enhancements to make the
user’s life easier. We were once asked
to make a translation of a FORTRAN
program used in nuclear reactor
design — i.e. translate it to ALGOL —
in order to see what the running
speed difference between the two
languages would be on that applica-
tion. To someone’s chagrin it turned
out that we could not actually run
the test data since there was a sub-
script out of range in the original
FORTRAN program. It is certain that
the program designed something —
but no-one knows what.

Several flaws in the design of the
1107 were corrected by Misek and
UNIVAC subsequently upgraded all






Global Currents

LECTURES examining the

broad currents of change,
conflict and innovation that
may shape tomorrow’s head-
lines will be held Nov. 1, 8, 15,
22, 29, and Dec. 6 at the
Charles ). Strosacker’06
Auditorium, 4 to 5:30 pm.
Admission is free. For details,
please telephone (216)
368-4492. O

Directions

(Continued from Page 13)

Digital is the world’s leading vendor
of academic timesharing systems.
Over 80 percent of the colleges and
universities in North America have
installed Digital systems. And Digital
is one of the nation’s top five indus-

trial contributors to higher education.

The company sponsors joint re-
search programs at colleges and uni-
versities throughout the country. The
joint research agreement with Case
Institute includes support for re-
search into academic support appli-
cations of personal computers and
for a separate graduate research pro-
gram into machine intelligence.

Digital also supports institutions
with cash research and study grants
to faculty and students and with spe-
cial equipment grant programs.

Technical seminar series and col-
lege and university seminar series
provide forums for the exchange of
Digital and college and university
speakers on emerging technologies
and technology-related issues.

Digital has long known that it is on
college and university campuses that
use will first be made of the best,
most innovative and most forward-
looking new technologies. Digital is
committed to providing practical
applications of those technologies
through coherent, manageable and
accessible networks of information
resources for higher education. O
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Computing Center
(Continued from Page 8)

remarkable stroke of luck, Alvin
Goldsmith, TRW Inc., Cleveland,
Ohio, called and offered me two
RW530 computers free. We really did
not want the computers but accepted
them to get the high speed card
readers and printers that came with
them. The lucky part was that the
tape units on the RW530 were com-
patible with those on the UNIVAC |
1108. Misek then attached one of the
RWS530s to the 1107 as an output
device and every night we would
read tape on the 1107 tape units and
write the information on the RW530
tapes.

The Chi Corp. crew continued in
the Case Tech tradition by making
some engineering changes in the
UNIVAC 1108 to fix some design
oversights. They also realized the
need for a new executive system to
take advantage of the 1108 capabili-
ties. Olson wrote “EXEC IV” and em-
ployed John W. Langner’68 as “sor-
cerer’s apprentice”. David L. Abt'76
took on the ALGOL maintenance and
Frank J. Olynyk’64 was in charge of
FORTRAN maintenance. Later on, a
major decision was made to write a
new executive system and Langner
and company wrote “CHI O/S”. This
was a real breakthrough since it was
written in an implementation lan-
guage (CHILI) designed by Abt.
Lynch and 1 were consultants to Chi
and Lynch was the chief idea genera-
tor for most of the new software.

The Jennings Computing Center was
moved from the Quail Building to
the Frederick C. Crawford Hall in
1970 where it currently occupies the
third and fourth floors. H. Wendell
Klingensmith is currently director of
the Computing Center.

In 1977, the Case Jennings Comput-

TECMAR Inc.

(Continued from Page 41)

systems and supporting software, the
$-100 analog to digital converter,
timer/counter board, the Apple
analog to digital converter and digital
to analog converter boards, PC-mate,
1st mate, 2nd mate and ELAN ex-
tended local area network. There are
over 100 products in TECMAR’s line

ing Center was changed to a Univer-
sity Computing Center (i.e. it no
longer was operated by Case Tech).
At the same time, the Center
acquired the staff and equipment
associated with a Campus Network
Project. Two of the Harris-slash-six
Computers involved with the net-
work project were installed in the
William E. Wickenden Building for
general campus access.

By 1980, it was again time to aug-
ment capacity since the two
machines in the Wickenden Building
and the UNIVAC 1108 were not able
to carry the load. A committee was
formed with Dr. Charles W. Rose G'70
as chairman to make a recommenda-
tion to the President’s Office then in
transition from Louis A. Toepfet to
Dr. David V. Ragone. The end resuit
was that the Jennings Computing -
Center installed a DEC20 (Digital
Equipment Corp.) in August 1980.
The DEC20 was up and running for
classes that same month. The Center
now (August 1983) has three DEC20s
and a VAX.

In the spring of 1983, Dr. Donald E.
Schuele G’63 (then vice dean of Case
Institute) negotiated the purchase of
75 DEC Professional 350 Personal
Computers for Case Tech. Fifty
of the machines are in the Albert W,
Smith’87 Building and will be used
for Case Tech courses. This represents
one of the best things that has hap-
pened for the students in quite a
while since they will now have guar-
anteed access to computing, no fear
of running up large bills and a very
pleasant working environment. Ms.
Linda Karaffa was hired as manager of
the Case Institute Professional Com-
puter Laboratory and following the
usual Case tradition has everything
running smoothly in spite of some
rather “interesting” problems that
were solved. O

with many more to be announced
shortly. Alpert estimates that TEC-
MAR has over 30 percent of the IBM-
PC compatible market share.

TECMAR has reacted rapidly to the
changing hi-tech market and the
future looks bright for Marty and
Carolyn Alpert, who only seven years
ago paid an attorney $360 to incorpo-
rate because they needed a letter-
head to order parts! O
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